
SOUTH DAKOTA COMMISSION ON GAMING 

87 Sherman Street • Deadwood, SD 57732  

(605) 578-3074 • dor.sd.gov/gaming

NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING 

AND QUARTERLY BUSINESS MEETING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the South Dakota Commission on Gaming will hold an administrative hearing and its 

quarterly business meeting on September 24, 2019  beginning at 9:00 MDT in the City Commission Chambers at 

Deadwood City Hall, 102 Sherman Street, Deadwood, South Dakota. 

AGENDA 

Call to Order 

Conflicts of Interest Disclosure 

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS 

In the matter of one Electrocoin Aztec-Azure slot machine serial # 026470 

Trackside appeal of action taken by Executive Secretary  

QUARTERLY BUSINESS MEETING 

Approval of the Minutes of Quarterly Meeting of June 25, 2019 and the Special Meeting of September 11, 2019 

Report Acting Executive Secretary 

Shane Kramme Verendrye Benevolent Association—Racing Season 2020 

Deadwood Licensing Matters  

Date of Next Meeting  

• November 13,2019

Public Comment 

Executive Session pursuant to SDCL 1-25-2 (1) (3) and (4) and 42-7B-8.1 (4) 

Decisions on Administrative Hearings 

Adjournment   

SUSAN CHRISTIAN, CIA 

Acting Executive Secretary 

  For access, persons with special needs may call the Commission office (605) 578-3074.  

1



SOUTH DAKOTA COMMISSION ON GAMING 

87 Sherman Street • Deadwood, SD 57732 
(605) 578-3074 • dor.sd.gov/gaming

42-7B-39.   Shipping records required to be maintained--Report by recipient--Transport out of state--Violation as
felony. Any slot machine manufacturer or distributor shipping a slot machine into the State of South Dakota shall
maintain for a period of at least five years from the time of shipment, the following records: a copy of the shipping
invoice including at least the destination and the serial number of each machine and a description of each machine.
Any person within the State of South Dakota receiving a slot machine shall maintain for a period of at least five
years from the time of receipt the following records: information showing at least the location of each machine, its
serial number, and description. This report shall be completed and maintained regardless of whether the machine is
received from a manufacturer or any other person. Any machine licensed pursuant to this chapter shall be licensed
for a specific location and movement of the machine from that location shall be reported to the commission within
twenty-four hours. If the machine is to be transported out of the State of South Dakota, the movement of the
machine shall be recorded and maintained by the licensee for not less than five years from the time of movement.
Possession of an unapproved device is a Class 6 felony. Any slot machine not in compliance with this chapter is
declared contraband and may be summarily seized and destroyed after notice and hearing.

Source: SL 1989, ch 374, § 34; SL 1993, ch 321, § 9; SL 1997, ch 245, § 1. 

42-7B-39.2.   Destruction of seized slot machine. Any slot machine seized pursuant to the provisions of § 42-7B-
39 may be destroyed after notice and without hearing if the person from whom the slot machine was seized fails to
appear at the time and place scheduled in the hearing notice.

Source: SL 2015, ch 220, § 2. 

2



SOUTH DAKOTA COMMISSION ON GAMING

87 Sherman Street • Deadwood, SD 57732  
(605) 578-3074 • dor.sd.gov/gaming

NOTICE OF HEARING 

TO:    FRANCIS RALPH HAMM 
      9673 WALDEN LANE 
      BLACKHAWK, SD 57718 

IN THE MATTER OF ONE ELECTROCOIN AZTECA-AZURE SLOT MACHINE 

Notice is hereby given that a hearing will be held before the South Dakota 
Commission on Gaming on Tuesday, September 24, 2019 at 9:00 AM in the City 
Commission Chambers in the Deadwood City Hall, 102 Sherman Street, Deadwood, 
South Dakota. 

The purpose of this hearing is to determine if the Electrocoin slot machine serial 
number 026470 which was seized from 7410 Castlewood Drive , Summerset, South 
Dakota on April 17, 2019 is contraband and may be destroyed pursuant to SDCL 42-
7B-39. 

This hearing is held the authority of SDCL 42-7B-39 and 42-7B-39.2. 

The particular statutes involved are SDCL 42-7B-39, 42-7B-39.2, 42-7B-4(21), 22-25-
13, 22-25-14 and 22-25-14.1. 

The matter to be asserted is that the slot machine described above is contraband 
and should be destroyed. 

As a result of this hearing the Commission on Gaming can order the destruction of 
the slot machine which was seized on April 17, 2019. 

This hearing is an adversary proceeding. Any person who claims an ownership 
interest in the machine described above has the right to be present, to be 
represented by a lawyer, to call witnesses to testify in their behalf and to question 
witnesses who testify against them. These and other due process rights will be 
forfeited if they are not exercised at the hearing. 

SDCL 42-7B-39.2 provides that the slot machine which was seized may be 
destroyed after notice and without hearing if you fail to appear at the time and 
place scheduled in this hearing notice. 3



If the amount in controversy exceeds two thousand five hundred dollars or if a 
property right may be terminated any party to the case may require the 
Commission to use the Office of Hearing Examiners by giving notice to the 
Commission no later than ten days after service of this Notice of Hearing. 

The decision of the Commission on Gaming may be appealed to the Circuit Court and 
the State Supreme Court as provided by law. 

Dated at Deadwood, South Dakota, the 30th day of August 2019. 

Susan Christian 
Acting Executive Secretary 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Susan Christian, do hereby certify that I served a copy of the foregoing Notice 
of Hearing upon: 

FRANCIS RALPH HAMM 
9673 WALDEN LANE 
BLACKHAWK, SD 57718 

By certified mail, return receipt requested with postage prepaid thereon on the 
30th day of August 2019. 

Susan Christian 

4



SOUTH DAKOTA COMMISSION ON GAMING 

87 Sherman Street • Deadwood, SD 57732  
(605) 578-3074 • dor.sd.gov/gaming

NOTICE OF HEARING 

TO:    RICKY MICHEL HAMM
  652 TERRACE DRIVE
 GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81507

IN THE MATTER OF ONE ELECTROCOIN AZTECA-AZURE SLOT MACHINE 

Notice is hereby given that a hearing will be held before the South Dakota 
Commission on Gaming on Tuesday, September 24, 2019 at 9:00 AM in the City 
Commission Chambers in the Deadwood City Hall, 102 Sherman Street, Deadwood, 
South Dakota. 

The purpose of this hearing is to determine if the Electrocoin slot machine serial 
number 026470 which was seized from 7410 Castlewood Drive , Summerset, South 
Dakota on April 17, 2019 is contraband and may be destroyed pursuant to SDCL 
42-7B-39.

This hearing is held the authority of SDCL 42-7B-39 and 42-7B-39.2. 

The particular statutes involved are SDCL 42-7B-39, 42-7B-39.2, 42-7B-4(21), 
22-25-13, 22-25-14 and 22-25-14.1.

The matter to be asserted is that the slot machine described above is contraband 
and should be destroyed. 

As a result of this hearing the Commission on Gaming can order the destruction of 
the slot machine which was seized on April 17, 2019. 

This hearing is an adversary proceeding. Any person who claims an ownership 
interest in the machine described above has the right to be present, to be 
represented by a lawyer, to call witnesses to testify in their behalf and to question 
witnesses who testify against them. These and other due process rights will be 
forfeited if they are not exercised at the hearing. SDCL 42-7B-39.2 provides that the slot machine which was seized may be 
destroyed after notice and without hearing if you fail to appear at the time and 
place scheduled in this hearing notice. 5



If the amount in controversy exceeds two thousand five hundred dollars or if a 
property right may be terminated any party to the case may require the 
Commission to use the Office of Hearing Examiners by giving notice to the 
Commission no later than ten days after service of this Notice of Hearing. 

The decision of the Commission on Gaming may be appealed to the Circuit Court and 
the State Supreme Court as provided by law. 

Dated at Deadwood, South Dakota, the 30th day of August 2019. 

Susan Christian 
Acting Executive Secretary 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Susan Christian, do hereby certify that I served a copy of the foregoing Notice 
of Hearing upon: 

RICKY MICHEL HAMM 
652 TERRACE DRIVE 
GRAND JUNCTION, CO 
81507 

By certified mail, return receipt requested with postage prepaid thereon on the 
30th day of August 2019. 

Susan Christian 

6



SOUTH DAKOTA COMMISSION ON GAMING 

87 Sherman Street • Deadwood, SD 57732  
(605) 578-3074 • dor.sd.gov/gaming

NOTICE OF HEARING 

TO:    DANA SUE HAMM 
      9673 WALDEN LANE 
      BLACKHAWK, SD 57718 

IN THE MATTER OF ONE ELECTROCOIN AZTECA-AZURE SLOT MACHINE 

Notice is hereby given that a hearing will be held before the South Dakota 
Commission on Gaming on Tuesday, September 24, 2019 at 9:00 AM in the City 
Commission Chambers in the Deadwood City Hall, 102 Sherman Street, Deadwood, 
South Dakota. 

The purpose of this hearing is to determine if the Electrocoin slot machine serial 
number 026470 which was seized from 7410 Castlewood Drive , Summerset, South 
Dakota on April 17, 2019 is contraband and may be destroyed pursuant to SDCL 42-
7B-39. 

This hearing is held the authority of SDCL 42-7B-39 and 42-7B-39.2. 

The particular statutes involved are SDCL 42-7B-39, 42-7B-39.2, 42-7B-4(21), 22-25-
13, 22-25-14 and 22-25-14.1. 

The matter to be asserted is that the slot machine described above is contraband 
and should be destroyed. 

As a result of this hearing the Commission on Gaming can order the destruction of 
the slot machine which was seized on April 17, 2019. 

This hearing is an adversary proceeding. Any person who claims an ownership 
interest in the machine described above has the right to be present, to be 
represented by a lawyer, to call witnesses to testify in their behalf and to question 
witnesses who testify against them. These and other due process rights will be 
forfeited if they are not exercised at the hearing. 

SDCL 42-7B-39.2 provides that the slot machine which was seized may be 
destroyed after notice and without hearing if you fail to appear at the time and 
place scheduled in this hearing notice. 7



If the amount in controversy exceeds two thousand five hundred dollars or if a 
property right may be terminated any party to the case may require the 
Commission to use the Office of Hearing Examiners by giving notice to the 
Commission no later than ten days after service of this Notice of Hearing. 

The decision of the Commission on Gaming may be appealed to the Circuit Court and 
the State Supreme Court as provided by law. 

Dated at Deadwood, South Dakota, the 30th day of August 2019. 

Susan Christian 
Acting Executive Secretary 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Susan Christian, do hereby certify that I served a copy of the foregoing Notice 
of Hearing upon: 

DANA SUE HAMM  
9673 WALDEN LANE 
BLACKHAWK, SD 57718 

By certified mail, return receipt requested with postage prepaid thereon on the 
30th day of August 2019. 

Susan Christian 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



SOUTH DAKOTA COMMISSION ON GAMING 

87 Sherman Street • Deadwood, SD 57732  
(605) 578-3074 • dor.sd.gov/gaming

SDCG Meeting Minutes September 11, 2019

UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

SOUTH DAKOTA COMMISSION ON GAMING SPECIAL MEETING 

MINUTES 
September 11, 2019 

The South Dakota Commission on Gaming held a special meeting at the law office of May, 
Adam, Gerdes & Thompson LLP, at 503 S Pierre Street, Pierre, South Dakota. 

Present at the roll call were: Commissioner Dennis McFarland, Commissioner Karen Wagner, 
Commissioner Karl Fischer, and Commissioner Mike Wordeman. Commissioner Greg Strommen 
participated telephonically. Staff members present for the meeting were Mike Shaw, 
Commission Attorney, Susan Christian, CIA, Acting Executive Secretary, and Larry Eliason, 
Commission on Gaming Special Assistant. Representing ZCN, LLC were Kasey Olivier and Ashley 
Miles Holtz, Attorneys from the law firm of Olivier Miles Holtz, LLP. 

At 11:30 a.m. the meeting was called to order by Commissioner McFarland. 

No conflicts of interest were noted on the agenda. 

Deadwood Licensing Matter 

Application of ZCN, LLC 

Staff recommended approval of ZCN, LLC. for an Operator and seven retail licenses to be 
assigned to Deadwood Mountain Grand replacing the licenses currently assigned to that 
location. (011382-OP, 11383, 11384, 11385, 11386, 11387, 11388, and 11389-RT’s). 

Commissioner Fischer made a motion to approve the business license’s as staff recommended. 
Commissioner Wagner seconded the motion. 

On a roll call vote motion carried unanimously. 

Commissioner Wagner Aye 
Commissioner McFarland Aye 
Commissioner Fischer Aye 
Commissioner Strommen Aye 
Commissioner Wordeman Aye 

15



SDCG Meeting Minutes September 11, 2019 

Public Comment 

There was no participation for the comment period of the meeting. 

Executive Session 

Commissioner Wagner made a motion to go into Executive Session. Commissioner Wordeman 
seconded the motion. 

On a roll call vote motion carried unanimously. 

Commissioner Wagner Aye 
Commissioner McFarland Aye 
Commissioner Fischer Aye 
Commissioner Strommen Aye 
Commissioner Wordeman Aye 

At 11:37 a.m. the Commission went into Executive Session pursuant to SDCL 1-25-2 (1) (3) and 
(4) and SDCL 42.7B-8.1 (4).

The Executive Session was concluded at 3:50 p.m. with no formal action taken. 

With no further business to be discussed Commissioner Wagner made a motion to adjourn the 
meeting. Commissioner Wordeman seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:55 p.m. CDT (2:55 p.m. MDT). 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Kathy Fredericksen 

________________________________          ____________________________________ 
Dennis McFarland  Susan Christian, CIA 
Chairman Acting Executive Secretary 

16



SOUTH DAKOTA COMMISSION ON GAMING 

87 Sherman Street • Deadwood, SD 57732 

(605) 578-3074 • dor.sd.gov/gaming

42-7-71.   South Dakota-bred racing fund--Use of fund. One-fourth of all money received by the state treasurer
under this chapter from licensees operating horse racing tracks shall be placed in a special revenue fund to be 
known as the South Dakota-bred racing fund. The fund shall be used by the commission to encourage horse racing 
and the raising and breeding of horses in South Dakota and shall be used for the purpose of providing 
compensation to South Dakota-bred horses and providing funds to all horse tracks licensed in South Dakota. 

Source: SDC 1939, § 53.0508 as enacted by SL 1963, ch 296, § 5; SDCL, § 42-7-26; SL 1978, ch 302, § 31; SL 
1983, ch 301, § 1; SL 1990, ch 340, § 1; SL 1991, ch 349, § 22; SL 2005, ch 229, § 5. 

42-7-79.1.   Additional deduction from some pools on dog races--Distribution. In addition to the deductions
authorized by § 42-7-79, the dog racing licensees shall deduct from the total sum contributed on dog races, except
contributions on dog races in the win, place, and show pool, an additional three and three-quarters percent on the
dollars contributed. The licensee will retain one-quarter of one percent for capital improvements on all amounts
contributed and an additional three and one-half percent shall be retained by the licensee for discretionary use. The
special racing revolving fund shall be in the Office of the State Treasurer to be disbursed by the commission to
increase purses or for operations, or upon request, funds may be granted to a political subdivision of the state for
unusual or unique law enforcement expenses incidental to having a race track or off-track site in that political
subdivision. Funds in the South Dakota-bred racing fund and the special racing revolving fund shall be disbursed by
the commission on warrants drawn by the state auditor on vouchers approved by the commission and such funds
shall be disbursed without authority of appropriation acts.

Source: SL 1981, ch 305, § 2; SL 1985, ch 332, § 1; SL 1987, ch 312, § 1; SL 1989, ch 367, § 5; SL 1990, ch 340, 
§ 2; SL 1991, ch 349, § 25.

42-7-60.   Bond required of applicant for license--Waiver--Revocation or suspension of license on nonpayment
of fees or taxes. Every person applying for a license under §§ 42-7-58, 42-7-58.1, and 42-7-56(16) shall give bond
payable to the State of South Dakota with good security to be approved by the commission. The bond shall be the
amount which the commission determines is adequate to protect the amount normally due and owing to the
commission in a sixty-day period or, in the case of new or altered conditions, based on the projected revenues and
to guarantee proper payout of wagers.
     The commission may waive the bond. In such event, the amount of taxes and fees due and owing the state 
shall be a lien on the license to operate. The lack of timely payment shall be cause for revocation or suspension of 
the license to operate.
Source: SDC 1939, § 53.0504; SDCL, § 42-7-11; SL 1978, ch 302, § 16; SL 1991, ch 349, § 14; SL 2000, ch 212, 
§ 4; SL 2005, ch 229, § 3.

17



SOUTH DAKOTA COMMISSION ON GAMING 

87 Sherman Street • Deadwood, SD 57732  
(605) 578-3074 • dor.sd.gov/gaming

CHAPTER 38 

(SB 128) 

An appropriation to select racing funds. 

ENTITLED, An Act to make an appropriation to the gaming commission fund, to provide for the transfer of funds to 
the special racing revolving fund and the South Dakota-bred racing fund, and to declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA: 

    Section 1. There is hereby appropriated from the general fund the sum of one hundred twenty thousand dollars 
($120,000), or so much thereof as may be necessary, to the gaming commission fund. 

    Section 2. The Commission on Gaming shall approve vouchers and the state auditor shall draw warrants to pay 
expenditures authorized by this Act. 

    Section 3. Any amounts appropriated in this Act not lawfully expended or obligated by June  30, 2021, shall revert in 
accordance with the procedures prescribed in chapter 4-8. 

    Section 4. The Commission on Gaming shall transfer the money appropriated under section 1 of this Act from the 
gaming commission fund to the special racing revolving fund and to the South Dakota-bred racing fund. The Commission 
on Gaming may allocate the transferred funds between the special racing revolving fund and the South Dakota-bred 
racing fund in any amount the commission chooses. 

    Section 5. Whereas, this Act is necessary for the support of the state government and its existing public institutions, an 
emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this Act shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval. 

 Signed March 27, 2019 
_______________ 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



SOUTH DAKOTA COMMISSION ON GAMING 

87 Sherman Street • Deadwood, SD 57732  

(605) 578-3074 • dor.sd.gov/gaming

42-7B-9.   Appointment and removal of executive secretary--Duties--Salary. The commission shall appoint, and
may remove, an executive secretary who shall serve at the pleasure of the commission and who shall be
responsible for the conduct of the commission's administrative matters and who shall devote full time and attention
to the business of his office and may not pursue any other business or occupation. The commission shall set the
annual salary of the executive secretary. The executive secretary may employ the persons that are necessary to
operate the South Dakota Commission on Gaming.

Source: SL 1989, ch 374, § 8. 

28


	9242019NOTICE OF QUARTERLY MEETINGpdf
	combined packet
	combined packet
	6-25-19 Unapproved Minutes
	9242019NOTICE OF QUARTERLY MEETING
	Executive secretary appointment
	Licensing Memo 9-24-19 with attachments
	Special meeting 9-11-19 unapproved minutes

	racing distribution 42-7

	Deadwood_DOR_Letterhead (1)
	F Hamm
	NOTICE OF HEARING
	NOTICE OF HEARING
	TO:    FRANCIS RALPH HAMM
	TO:    FRANCIS RALPH HAMM
	CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
	CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

	R Hamm
	NOTICE OF HEARING
	NOTICE OF HEARING
	TO:    RICKY MICHEL HAMM
	TO:    RICKY MICHEL HAMM
	CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
	CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

	S Hamm
	NOTICE OF HEARING
	NOTICE OF HEARING
	TO:    DANA SUE HAMM
	TO:    DANA SUE HAMM
	CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
	CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

	sb 128 resolutiopn 3219



